
 

 
 

 

 
 
The Honorable President and         
 Members of the City Council  
 City Hall, Room 400    
 
Position: Support with Amendments 
 
The Department of Finance is herein reporting on City Council Bill 25-0036 Property Taxes – Baltimore 
City Payment in Lieu of Taxes Task Force, for the purpose of establishing the Baltimore City Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes Task Force; providing for the membership, staffing, compensation, and procedures of the 
Task Force; establishing the duties of the Task Force; requiring a certain annual report; defining certain 
terms; and generally relating to the Baltimore City Payment in Lieu of Taxes Task Force (PILOT). 
 
Background 
Nonprofit institutions in Maryland are exempt from property taxes if their property is used exclusively for 
charitable or educational purposes. However, the City bears a significant cost in providing essential services 
that these institutions benefit from, including public safety, street maintenance, street lighting, public-right-
of-way cleaning and landscaping, and snow removal, among others. To account for these costs the City has 
traditionally sought voluntary contributions from the largest nonprofit institutions to the City’s General 
Fund. The City currently has a ten-year agreement with the 14 largest educational and medical institutions    
that generates $6.0 million annually.  The current agreement expires at the end of Fiscal 2026. 
 
Baltimore City is disproportionately impacted by Maryland’s property tax exemption for non-profits in 
comparison to other Maryland counties.  27% of the City’s assessed real property is exempt from taxation, 
which includes properties used for government, education, charitable, and religious purposes.  By 
comparison, the sum of all other Maryland county’s tax-exempt property is only 9.6% of its total.  One 
result of the high proportion of tax-exempt property in Baltimore is that it shifts the tax burden onto other 
non-exempt entities.  Baltimore City property owners pay a real property tax rate of $2.248 per $100 of 
assessed value, by far the highest county rate in the state of Maryland. 
 
If the current parties to the non-profit PILOT agreement were paying full taxes, those institutions would 
contribute over $105 million to the General Fund annually.  The table below summarizes the current non-
profit contributions versus the amount that would be due if those institutions were fully taxable: 
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Policy Considerations 
Council Bill 25-0036 establishes a 17-person Non-Profit PILOT Task Force, with members serving a four-
year term. The Task Force would be tasked with recommending a standard formula for calculating PILOT 
payments for each tax-exempt hospital and university, as well as educating the public about PILOT 
agreements and the impact that property taxes have on the City budget.  The bill also requires the 
Department of Finance, with assistance from the Task Force, to submit an annual report to the Mayor and 
City Council that summarizes the annual PILOT payments made by each participating institution and the 
status of any other obligations of those institutions under the PILOT agreement. 
 
Although we appreciate the intent of the proposed Task Force, especially around the public education 
components, some of the tasks outlined for the Task Force in CCB#25-0036 are duplicative of work already 
underway.  For example, the bill tasks the Task Force with recommending the standard formula by which 
PILOT payments would be calculated.  The Department of Finance, in preparation for negotiating a new 
PILOT agreement beginning in Fiscal 2027, has already begun exploring best practices on calculation 
methods in other cities including Boston, Providence, and New Haven.  One common model, which is still 
utilized by the City of Boston, is to set a standard voluntary contribution amount based on the size of the 
entity’s real property assessment plus an estimate of the government services consumed by the tax-exempt 
entity.  Some cities have also developed methodologies for entities to deduct the value of community 
benefits or partnerships, which tends to drive higher compliance overall. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The Department of Finance expects a negligible financial impact from Council Bill 25-0036. Task Force 
members would not be paid but could be reimbursed for small expenses.  The required staff support for the 
Task Force could be handled by existing staff in the Department of Finance. 
 
Conclusion 
The Department of Finance supports the intent of City Council Bill 25-0036, which is to raise awareness 
about the City’s PILOT agreement with its largest non-profit medical and educational institutions.  We 
suggest amending the bill to eliminate the requirement that the Task Force recommend a formula for future 
agreements, which is duplicative of work already being performed. 
 
For the reasons stated above, the Department of Finance supports City Council Bill 25-0036. 



 

 

 

 
cc: Michael Mocksten 
      Nina Themelis 
 


